

U.S. Department of Justice Executive Office for United States Attorneys

# **United States Attorneys' Bulletin**

Published by:

Editor-in-Chief:

Editor:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Executive Office for United States Attorneys, Washington, D.C. For the use of all U.S. Department of Justice Attorneys

Jason P. Green

Judith C. Campbell

William P. Tyson, Director

FTS 633-4024

FTS 673-6348

EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS

Page COMMENDATIONS... **CLEARINGHOUSE** FCC Expands Retention Period for Telephone Toll Records to 18 Months..... 291 Tax Division Directive No. 86-59...... 292 POINTS TO REMEMBER Guidelines on INS Undercover Operations..... ... 292 Motions for Expungement of Arrest, Conviction and Related Criminal Records 293 Rule 6(e): Grand Jury Secrecy--In Re Grand Jury Subpoena Duces Tecum..... 295 Terrorist Acts Abroad Against United States Nationals - 18 U.S.C. §2331... 296 CASENOTES CIVIL DIVISION. APPENDIX 307

VOL. 34, NO. 12

#### THIRTY-THIRD YEAR

NOVEMBER 15, 1986

Please send change of address to Editor, <u>United States Attorneys' Bulletin</u>, Room,1136, Universal Building North, 10th & Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20530.

#### COMMENDATIONS

The following Assistant United States Attorneys have been commended:

JAMES E. BERLINER and MAURICE A. LEITER (California, Central) by Commissioner Alan C. Nelson, Immigration and Naturalization Service, for their successful criminal prosecution of a complex immigration case.

STEPHEN J. CALVACCA (Florida, Middle) by Chief Darrell G. Smith, Criminal Investigation Division, Internal Revenue Service, for his successful prosecution of tax cases and his handling of complex IRS issues before federal grand juries.

H. WAYNE CAMPBELL and WALTER E. HERMAN III (Texas, Southern) by Inspector General William R. Barton, General Services Administration, for their successful efforts in the investigation and prosecution of a case involving violations of 18 U.S.C. §208 and §1503.

SANDRA W. CHERRY and KENNETH F. STOLL, along with United States Attorney GEORGE W. PROCTOR (Arkansas, Eastern) were awarded Certificates of Appreciation by Inspector General Robert W. Beuley, Department of Agriculture, for their successful handling of cases investigated and presented in the last fiscal year.

FRANK A. CONFORTI (Texas, Southern) by Regional Commissioner Stephen H. Martin, Immigration and Naturalization Service, for his presentation on "Justice Forfeiture" and "Equitable Transfer of Forfeited Property" at the INS Southern Region Vehicle Seizure/Forfeiture Conference.

JON R. COOPER (Arizona) by Supervising Senior Resident Agent Richard M. Rogers, Federal Bureau of Investigation, for his successful prosecution of a child molestation case, which occurred on an Indian Reservation.

J. STEPHEN CZULEGER (California, Central) by Attorney General Edwin Meese III for his fine job in the extradiction case of a Mexican national.

TERRY L. DERDEN (Arkansas, Eastern) by Special Agent-in-Charge Don K. Pettus, Federal Bureau of Investigation, for his outstanding contributions to the Arkansas Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force.

JOHN M. FACCIOLA (District of Columbia) by Mr. Donald D. Engen, Administrator, Federal Aviation Administration, for his successful efforts in a "disappointed bidder" case involving the award of an \$18.1 million contract.

WILLIAM F. FAHEY (California, Central) by Director William H. Webster, Federal Bureau of Investigation, for his exceptional handling of the investigation and prosecution of the national gemstone boiler room operation case.

BRIAN J. HENNIGAN (California, Central) by Special Agent-in-Charge Richard T. Bretzing, Federal Bureau of Investigation, for his excellent prosecutive skills in four complex fraud cases.

MEL S. JOHNSON (Wisconsin, Eastern) by Mr. William H. Webster, Director, Federal Bureau of Investigation, for his outstanding contributions and extraordinary efforts in major fraud against the government prosecutions. TIMOTHY JOHNSON (Texas, Southern) by Special Agent-in-Charge W. Douglas Gow, Federal Bureau of Investigation, for his outstanding courtroom performance in an 18 U.S.C. §2113 (a) and (d) violations case.

DAVID A. KATZ (California, Central) by Special Agent-in-Charge Richard T. Bretzing, Federal Bureau of Investigation, for his successful prosecution of a case involving mail and wire fraud, interstate transportation of stolen property, and conspiracy; and by Inspector-in-Charge W.J. Maisch, United States Postal Service, for his prosecutive competence in a postal robbery case.

RICHARD D. LETTS (Ohio, Southern) by Assistant Secretary for Labor-Management Standards Salvatore R. Martoche, Department of Labor, for his successful prosecution of a case involving violations of the Labor-Management Reporting and Disclosure Act of 1959.

WILMA A. LEWIS (District of Columbia) by Inspector General Frank S. Sato, Veterans Administration, and was awarded the VA's Certificate of Appreciation for her outstanding efforts on behalf of the Office of Inspector General.

MARK E. NAGLE (District of Columbia) by Director Thomas J. O'Brien, Defense Investigative Service, Department of Defense, for his superb handling of a case involving the Defense Industrial Security Program.

KATHLEEN A. O'MALLEY (Florida, Middle) by Director John R. Simpson, United States Secret Service, Department of the Treasury, and was awarded the Secret Service Certificate of Appreciation for her outstanding assistance to the Secret Service over the past two years.

STEPHEN L. PURCELL (Florida, Middle) by Chief Darrell G. Smith, Criminal Investigation Division, Internal Revenue Service, for his exceptional performance in prosecuting several criminal tax cases.

VICTORIA A. ROBERTS (Michigan, Eastern) by Associate Deputy Under Secretary Lawrence W. Rogers, Department of Labor, for her excellent efforts in a Reductionin-Force case.

DEBORAH L. ROBINSON (District of Columbia) by General Counsel Donald L. Ivers, Veterans Administration, for her skillful and successful defense of a technically complex case affecting a VA ADP procurement.

SOLOMON E. ROBINSON (California, Eastern) by Brigadier General James W. Hopp, United States Air Force, for his excellent handling of a discrimination case.

JAMES C. SABALOS (Texas, Southern) by Mr. William H. Webster, Director, Federal Bureau of Investigation, for his outstanding prosecutive efforts in a theft from Interstate Shipment case.

MARK ST. ANGELO (California, Eastern) by Lieutenant Commander G.R. Bartleson, Naval Auxiliary Landing Field, Department of the Navy, for his dedication and outstanding work in the Stanislaus County landfill expansion settlement agreement.

RONALD K. SILVER (California, Central) by Superintendent H. Gilbert Lusk, Glacier National Park, National Park Service, for his excellent work in the Hilligoss-Lordan bear mauling case.

#### Justice Tom C. Clark and Younger Federal Lawyer Awards.

Deputy Attorney General Arnold I. Burns acknowledges and congratulates DAVID J. ANDERSON, a Director of the Federal Programs Branch, Civil Division, and the 1986 recipient of the Justice Tom C. Clark Award. Mr. ANDERSON was recognized for his many outstanding achievements as a litigator and supervisory attorney during more than twenty years of service with the Civil Division. His active role and achievements in defining the scope of Executive Powers, including those involving foreign relations and national security interests of the United States, were particularly noteworthy.

Deputy Attorney General Burns also commended the following attorneys for their highly commendable performance and achievements which distinguished them for nomination for the Younger Federal Lawyer Award:

DEAN S. COOPER, Trial Attorney, Commercial Litigation Branch, Civil Division. NANCY B. FIRESTONE, Deputy Section Chief, Environmental Enforcement Section, Land and Natural Resources Division.

MARTIN F. HEALY, Assistant United States Attorney, California, Northern VIRGINIA A. MATHIS, Assistant United States Attorney, Arizona ANN C. ROWLAND, Assistant United States Attorney, Ohio, Northern

#### CLEARINGHOUSE

# Federal Communications Commission Expands the Retention Period for Telephone Toll Records to 18 Months.

On August 22, 1986, the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) revised 47 C.F.R. Part 42, <u>Preservation of Records of Communication Common Carriers</u>. The revised regulations require that each carrier retain for a period of 18 months such records as are necessary to provide billing information about telephone toll calls such as name, address and number of caller, telephone number called, date, time, and length of call. The previous record retention period was limited to six months.

A copy of the proposed regulations can be obtained from the Office of Legal Services on FTS 633-4024. Please request item number CH-39.

### Guidelines for Obtaining Informal Immunity in Antitrust Cases.

By memorandum dated July 24, 1986, to all Antitrust Division attorneys, Assistant Attorney General Douglas H. Ginsburg authorized the use of informal immunity in Antitrust Division criminal investigations and cases for a one-year trial period.

The memorandum sets forth guidelines which detail the procedures for obtaining authority to grant informal immunity and under what circumstances such a grant may be appropriate. The guidelines require that the appropriate United States Attorney should be notified before granting informal immunity. The notification will generally be in writing if time permits, but oral notification may be permissible. The memorandum and guidelines previously circulated to all United States Attorneys can be obtained through the Office of Legal Services on FTS 633-4024. Please request item number CH-40.

#### Legal/Policy Advisory on Asset Forfeiture Matters.

A copy of the following advisory, prepared by the Asset Forfeiture Office of the Criminal Division, may be obtained from the Executive Office for United States Attorneys. Please contact the Office of Legal Services on FTS 633-4024, and request item number CH-41.

L86-7 September 9, 1986, memorandum from Brad Cates, Director, Asset Forfeiture Office, to William Snider, Associate Chief Counsel, Drug Enforcement Administration, re: "Sharing of Seized Property With Participating Non-DOJ Federal Agencies."

#### Tax Division Directive No. 86-59.

Tax Division Directive No. 86-59, signed by Assistant Attorney General Roger M. Olsen, went into effect October 1, 1986. The Directive was teletyped, in its entirety, to United States Attorneys' offices on October 1, 1986. The Directive delegates authority to approve requests seeking to expand a nontax grand jury investigation to include inquiry into possible federal criminal tax violations to the following:

- 1. Any United States Attorney appointed under 28 U.S.C. §541.
- 2. Any Attorney-in-Charge of a Criminal Division Organized Crime Strike Force established pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §510.
- 3. Any independent counsel appointed under 28 U.S.C. §593.

It is advised that the Directive be read in its entirety. A copy of the Directive can be obtained from the Office of Legal Services, at FTS 633-4024. Please request item number CH-42.

#### POINTS TO REMEMBER

#### Guideline's on INS Undercover Operations.

Immigration and Naturalization Service (INS) guidelines on the use of undercover operations have been in effect since March 19, 1984. The guidelines cover all INS undercover operations, and separates them into three categories: (1) undercover operations which must be authorized by the INS Commissioner with the concurrence of the Assistant Attorney General for the Criminal Division; (2) undercover operations which must be authorized by the appropriate Regional Commissioner; and (3) undercover operations which must be approved by the appropriate District Director or Chief Patrol Agent. The guidelines also create an Undercover Operations Review Committee comprised of INS personnel and Criminal Division attorneys to review and vote on operations requiring central office approval.

#### NOVEMBER 15, 1986

An "undercover operations" is defined in the guidelines to mean "any investigative operation in which an undercover employee or cooperating private individual is used." The Undercover Operations Review Committee's understanding as to what constitutes an "investigative operation," is set forth in an INS memorandum dated August 28, 1986. A copy of the guidelines and the August 28 memorandum is being mailed to each United States Attorney's office by the General Litigation and Legal Advice Section of the Criminal Division. United States Attorneys are encouraged to make these documents available to their Assistants.

Contact the General Litigation and Legal Advice Section of the Criminal Division, at FTS 724-7144, with any questions concerning the INS undercover operations guidelines.

(Criminal Division)

# Motions for Expungement of Arrest, Conviction and Related Criminal Records Maintained by Military and Civilian Law Enforcement Agencies.

United States Attorneys are reminded that motions to expunge arrest, conviction, and related criminal justice records should be vigorously opposed unless in the discretion of the United States Attorney, the interests of justice clearly require expungement. Normally, the interests of justice will not require expungement unless the basis for expungement is one which is set forth in the cases referenced below. This policy pertains to records of all criminal investigations conducted by the armed services and civilian agencies.

In arguing against expungement, United States Attorneys should stress the practical necessity for the maintenance of criminal intelligence information for use in the apprehension of criminals and the detection of future crime. Congress has authorized the collection and maintenance of this important information, 28 U.S.C. §534, and the retention of arrest and conviction records, fingerprints, and photographs promotes effective law enforcement. See, Stevenson v. United States, 380 F.2d 590, 594 n.12 (D.C. Cir. 1967), cert. denied, 389 U.S. 962 (1967) (fingerprints); Herschel v. Dyra, 365 F.2d 17, 20 (7th Cir. 1966), cert. denied, 385 U.S. 973 (1966) (arrest records); Thom v. New York Stock Exchange, 306 F. Supp. 1002 (S.D. N.Y. 1969), affirmed sub nom., Miller v. New York Stock Exchange, 425 F.2d 1074, 1075 (2d Cir. 1970), cert. denied, 398 U.S. 905 (1970) (fingerprints). These records provide legitimate leads and background information and may be an important factor in resolving criminal cases. The retention of criminal information records enables military and civilian law enforcement officials to utilize more efficiently their facilities for combatting crime and is vital in curbing the growth of crime. See, Natwig v. Webster, 562 F. Supp. 225, 229 (D. R.I. 1983) (arrest records), quoting United States v. Rosen, 343 F. Supp. 804, 809 (S.D. N.Y. 1972) (fingerprints, photographs and "any other arrest records").

While the courts have recognized that they possess "ancillary," "inherent" or "general" power to order the expunction of arrest, indictment, conviction and related criminal justice records, see, <u>United States v. G</u>, 774 F.2d 1392, 1394 (9th Cir. 1985); <u>Doe v. Webster</u>, 606 F.2d 1226, 1230 n.8 (D.C. Cir. 1979); <u>Natwig v.</u> <u>Webster</u>, <u>supra at 227</u>, a court's remedial power is not unlimited. There must be a logical relationship between the injury and the requested remedy. <u>Doe v. Webster</u>, 606 F.2d at 1231. An individual is not entitled to expungement of an otherwise legal arrest record simply because the charges are subsequently dismissed or a trial ends in acquittal. United States v. Schnitzer, 567 F.2d 536 (2d Cir. 1977), cert. denied, 435 U.S. 907 (1978); United States v. Linn, 513 F.2d 925 (10th Cir. 1975), cert. denied, 423 U.S. 836 (1975); Rowlett v. Fairfax, 446 F. Supp. 186 (W.D. Mo. 1978); Coleman v. Department of Justice, 429 F.Supp. 411 (N.D. Ind. 1977); Hammons v. Scott, 423 F. Supp. 625 (N.D. Cal. 1976); United States v. Seasholtz, 376 F. Supp. 1288 (N.D. Okl. 1974); United States v. Dooley, 364 F. Supp. 75 (E.D. Pa. 1973); United States v. Rosen, Supra.

Expungement of arrest records is the appropriate remedy, however, where the arrest is unconstitutional, <u>Maurer v. Los Angeles County Sheriff's Department</u>, 691 F.2d 434 (9th Cir. 1982); <u>Sullivan v. Murphy</u>, 478 F.2d 938 (D.C. Cir. 1973), cert. denied, 414 U.S. 880 (1973); where the arrest occurred under an unconstitutional statute, <u>Kowall v. United States</u>, 53 F.R.D. 211 (W.D. Mich. 1971); where the arrest was made with an illegitimate motive or for purposeful harassment, <u>United States v. McLeod</u>, 385 F.2d 734, 749-750 (5th Cir. 1967); <u>Wheeler v. Goodman</u>, 306 F. Supp. 58 (W.D. N.C. 1969); where there was a mass arrest without probable cause, <u>Bilick v. Dudley</u>, 356 F. Supp. 945, 952 (S.D. N.Y. 1973); or where there was detention that fell short of an arrest, <u>Menard v. Saxbe</u>, 498 F.2d 1017 (D.C. Cir. 1974).

Likewise, expungement of conviction records will occur where the conviction is illegal, Kowall v. United States, supra; or unconstitutional, Severson v. Duff, 322 F. Supp. 4 (M.D. Fla. 1970), but see, Rogers v. Slaughter, 469 F.2d 1084 (5th Cir. 1972); where the conviction resulted from government misconduct, United States v. Benlizar, 459 F. Supp. 614 (D.C. Cir. 1978); or where a youth is wrongly tried as an adult, Grandison v. Warden, 423 F. Supp. 112 (D. Md. 1976).

#### (Criminal Division)

#### Personnel.

Effective September 29, 1986, Christopher D. Hagen was court-appointed United States Attorney for the Southern District of Iowa.

Effective September 30, 1986, George J. Terwilliger was court-appointed United States Attorney for the District of Vermont.

Effective October 3, 1986, D. Michael Crites was court-appointed United States Attorney for the Southern District of Ohio.

Effective October 10, 1986, Robert S. Mueller III was court-appointed United States Attorney for the District of Massachusetts.

Effective October 15, 1986, Robert L. Barr, Jr. took the Oath of Office as the Presidentially-appointed United States Attorney for the Northern District of Georgia.

Effective October 15, 1986, Charles W. Larson was court-appointed United States Attorney for the Northern District of Iowa.

(Executive Office)

# Rule 6(e): Grand Jury Secrecy -- In Re Grand Jury Subpoena Duces Tecum, dated January 15, 1986, 797 F.2d 676 (8th Cir. 1986).

On July 29, 1986, the Eighth Circuit decided a case of first impression in the courts of appeals that will provide federal prosecutors with an important weapon in guarding the secrecy of grand jury proceedings against the risk of disclosure by grand jury witnesses. In In Re Grand Jury Subpoena Duces Tecum, dated January 15, 1986, 797 F.2d 676 (8th Cir. 1986), the district court had previously denied the government's motion for a temporary secrecy order to prevent a financial records custodian from informing its customers that their records had been subpoenaed by a federal grand jury. On appeal, however, the Eighth Circuit held that, in enacting Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure 6(e)(2)'s general prohibition against imposing secrecy obligations on grand jury witnesses, Congress did not "intend . . . to bar the district courts from imposing a reasonable obligation of secrecy on grand jury witnesses in an appropriate case." As the court noted, Rule 6(e)'s secrecy provisions were aimed at ensuring that targets could not escape, influence grand jurors, or intimidate witnesses. If grand jury witnesses were accorded "unrestricted freedom to communicate" with targets concerning on-going investigations, "the entire purpose of grand jury secrecy" would be "completely undercut." Accordingly, where there is a particularized showing that the need for secrecy outweighs Rule 6(e)(2)'s countervailing policy, the Eighth Circuit held that "the district court may direct a grand jury witness to keep secret from targets of the investigation the existence of a subpoena, the nature of documents subpoenaed, or testimony before the grand jury."

Two questions remain unanswered by the court's decision. First, since the court did not reach the question, it is unclear how much evidence the government must present to demonstrate a "particularized need" for the issuance of a secrecy In this case, the government offered general averments concerning the risk order. of flight, the destruction of evidence, and witness intimidation, along with a more specific but nonetheless conclusory allegation that a primary witness believed his life to be in danger; presumably, greater specificity will be required to meet the "particularized need" standard. Second, the court focused solely on the matter of disclosures by witnesses to the targets of grand jury investigations. It did not, as such, address the question whether secrecy orders would ever be appropriate to prohibit disclosures to non-targets. The court did, however, at least intimate that a different result might follow if the government sought to impose a witness secrecy obligation with respect to such non-targets as an attorney or other associate of the witness. Such a limitation on the scope of the Eighth Circuit's holding would certainly be consistent with the legislative history accompanying Rule 6(e)(2), which was enacted to eliminate the "unnecessary hardship and . . injustice" that may result "if a witness is not permitted to make disclosure to counsel or to an associate."

In sum, it is important that Department attorneys conducting grand jury proceedings be aware that such orders are available to protect the secrecy and the integrity of their grand jury investigations. At the same time, such secrecy orders should not be routinely sought, but only in those instances in which a particularized showing can be made regarding the risks of flight, grand juror influence or intimidation, witness intimidation, or the destruction of evidence. As in In Re Grand Jury Subpoena Duces Tecum, Dated January 15, 1986, such showings should be made by affidavit or testimonial evidence in an ex parte, in camera proceeding. Moreover, given the Eighth Circuit's dicta and Rule 6(e)(2)'s legislaQuestions concerning this case may be directed to Robert Erickson, Appellate Section, Criminal Division, on FTS 633-2841.

(Criminal Division)

#### Terrorist Acts Abroad Against United States Nationals - 18 U.S.C. §2331.

Section 1202 of the Omnibus Diplomatic Security and Anti-terrorism Act of 1986, Pub. L. No. 99-399, August 28, 1986, creates a new chapter 113A - Extraterritorial Jurisdiction Over Terrorist Acts Abroad Against United States Nationals - in Title 18, United States Code. Section 2331 of the new chapter establishes four new extraterritorial federal offenses. Any prosecution under Section 2331 requires the written certification of the Attorney General or the Associate Attorney General that in his/her judgment the offense was intended to coerce, intimidate, or retaliate against a government or a civilian population. The new provisions are not intended to reach non-terrorist violence inflicted upon American victims. Consistent with the provisions of USAM 9-2.136, no investigative action under 18 U.S.C.  $\S2331$  is to be undertaken by any United States Attorney without the express authorization of the Assistant Attorney General of the Criminal Division. The main provisions of Section 2331 are:

(1) Subsection (a) makes it a crime to kill a national of the United States while such national is outside the United States. If the killing is a murder as defined in 18 U.S.C.  $\S1111(a)$ , the penalty is a fine of up to \$250,000 or imprisonment for any term of years or for life, or both fine and imprisonment. If the killing is a voluntary manslaughter as defined in 18 U.S.C. \$1112(a), the penalty is a fine of up to \$250,000 or imprisonment for not more than ten years, or both. If the killing is involuntary manslaughter as defined in 18 U.S.C. \$1112(a), the penalty is a fine of up to \$250,000 or imprisonment for not more than ten years, or both. If the killing is involuntary manslaughter as defined in 18 U.S.C. \$1112(a), the penalty is a fine of up to \$250,000 or imprisonment for not more than three years, or both.

(2) Subsection (b) creates an offense for an attempted murder outside the United States of a United States national and establishes the penalty as a fine of up to \$250,000 or imprisonment not for more than 20 years, or both.

(3) Subsection (b) also makes it an offense to conspire outside of the United States to murder a United States national. The location of the targeted national can be inside or outside of the United States. The conspiracy requires an overt act. The penalty is a fine of up to \$250,000 or imprisonment for any term of years or for life, or both.

(4) Subsection (c) makes it a crime to engage in physical violence outside the United States with the intent to cause serious bodily injury to a national of the United States or with the result that serious bodily injury is caused to a national of the United States. Hence, blowing up a building or vehicle with such intent or result would be covered. The penalty is a fine of up to \$250,000 or imprisonment for not more than five years, or both. (5) Subsection (d) defines "national of the United States" to have the meaning given such term in Section 101(a)(22) of the Immigration and Nationality Act (8 U.S.C. §1101(a)(22)).

(6) Subsection (e) requires prior to prosecution the written certification of the Attorney General or the highest ranking subordinate of the Attorney General with responsibility for criminal prosecutions. Under the present division of responsibilities, the latter official is the Associate Attorney The certifying official must find that in his/her judgment, the General. "offense was intended to coerce, intimidate, or retaliate against a government or a civilian population." The required certification is to ensure that the statute is used to prosecute terrorists and not persons who injure or kill Americans overseas in barroom brawls or normal street crime. The offense itself, however, does not require any proof of the terrorist motive for the murder or injury. The determination of the certifying official is final and is not subject to judicial review. The term "civilian population" includes the general population as well as other specific identifiable segments of society, such as the membership of a religious faith or of a particular nationality. Neither the targeted government nor civilian population, or segment thereof, has to be that of the United States.

The section became effective on August 28, 1986, and the Attorney General certified its use for the prosecution of the four surviving hijackers of Pan American Flight 73 in Karachi, Pakistan, on September 5, 1986.

Contact Karen A. Morrissette (FTS 724-5840) or Stephen M. Weglian (FTS 724-7526), General Litigation and Legal Advice Section, Criminal Division, with any guestions about this new statute.

(Criminal Division)

#### CASENOTES

#### OFFICE OF THE SOLICITOR GENERAL

The Solicitor General has authorized the filing of:

A petition for certiorari in <u>United States v. Coalition to Preserve the</u> <u>Integrity of American Trademarks</u>, 790 F.2d 903 (D.C. Cir. 1986). The question presented is whether a Customs Service regulation that permits the importation of "grey market" goods is valid under Section 526 of the Tariff Act of 1930, 19 U.S.C. §1526.

A petition for certiorari in <u>Abourezk v. Reagan</u>, 785 F.2d 1043 (D.C. Cir. 1986). The issues are (1) whether <u>8 U.S.C. §1182(a)(27)</u> allows exclusion of an alien only if (a) his activities, and not his mere presence or entry, would endanger the public welfare or (b) the affiliation of an organization listed in 8 U.S.C. §1182(a)(28) with a foreign country is an independent reason for his exclusion, beyond his mere membership in the organization; (2) whether the exclusion of aliens in this case violates plaintiffs' First Amendment rights; and (3) whether the delegation of power to the Executive Branch in 8 U.S.C. §1182(a)(27) violates principles of separation of powers. A petition for certiorari in NLRB v. United Food and Commercial Workers Union, 788 F.2d 178 (3d Cir. 1986). The questions are (1) whether the withdrawal of an unfair labor practice complaint by the General Counsel of the National Labor Relations Board pursuant to an informal settlement agreement entered into prior to the commencement of a hearing on the complaint constitutes agency action subject to judicial review; and (2) if so, whether the General Counsel must hold an evidentiary hearing whenever the party who filed the unfair labor practice charge objects to the settlement and requests such a hearing.

A petition for certiorari in <u>INS v. Flores</u>, 786 F.2d 1242 (5th Cir. 1986). The question presented is whether an alien's burden of proving eligibility for asylum under Section 208(a) of the Immigration and Nationality Act of 1952, 8 U.S.C. S1158(a), is equivalent to his burden of proving eligibility for withholding of deportation pursuant to Section 243(h) of the Act, 8 U.S.C. S1253(h).

A petition for certiorari in <u>Commissioner of Internal Revenue v. Fink</u>, 789 F.2d 427 (6th Cir. 1986). The issue is whether a non-pro-rata surrender of stock gives rise to an immediate loss deduction under Section 165 of the Internal Revenue Code.

A petition for certiorari in <u>United States v. Robinson</u>, 794 F.2d 1132 (6th Cir. 1986). The issues are (1) whether the prosecutor's comments at trial violated the rule of <u>Griffin v. California</u>, 380 U.S. 609 (1965); and (2) whether Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure 52(b) applies to constitutional errors.

A petition for certiorari in <u>Commissioner of Internal Revenue v. Illinois</u> <u>Cereal Mills</u>, 789 F.2d 1234 (7th Cir. 1986). The question is whether 95% of the electrical power in a new factory used to operate machinery means that 95% of the installation cost of the factory's electrical system qualifies for the investment tax credit under Section 48 of the Internal Revenue Code.

A petition for certiorari in <u>Tisch v. Shidaker</u>, No. 84-2791 (7th Cir. Jan. 29, 1986). The question presented is whether a plaintiff can establish a Title VII cause of action based on alleged disparate impact resulting from a subjective promotion practice or procedure.

Petitions for certiorari in Erwin v. Westfall, 785 F.2d 1551 (11th Cir. 1986), and <u>Deschambault v. Sowell</u>, 791 F.2d 170 (11th Cir. 1986). The question is whether a federal employee who exercises operational rather than policy level discretion is entitled to absolute immunity from liability for common law torts that he commits while acting within the scope of his official duties.

A brief amicus curiae in <u>Young v. United States ex rel. Vuitton et Fils S.A.</u>, 780 F.2d 179 (2d Cir. 1985). The issue is whether, consistent with the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment and Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure 42(b), a private party may prosecute criminal contempt proceedings.

A brief amicus curiae in <u>Iowa Mutual Insurance Co. v. LaPlante</u>, 774 F.2d 1174 (9th Cir. 1985). The question is whether, in an action brought by a citizen of one state against tribal Indians resident in another state, where the events giving rise to the cause of action centered on the reservation and are the subject of a claim pending before the tribal court, the federal district court should refrain from exercising diversity jurisdiction unless the tribal court proceedings have been completed and the tribal court had no jurisdiction.

A brief amicus curiae in <u>Burlington Northern R.R. Co. v. Oklahoma Tax</u> <u>Commission</u>, No. 85-1657 (10th Cir. 1986). The question presented is whether Section 306 of the Railroad Revitalization and Regulatory Reform Act exempts discriminatory taxation resulting from overvaluation of railroad property unless the railroad makes a prima facie showing before trial of "purposeful overvaluation with discriminatory intent."

A jurisdictional statement in <u>United States v. Amos</u>, Civ. No. C-83-0492W (D. Utah May 16, 1986). The issue is whether Section 702 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. §2000e-1, which exempts all activities conducted by religious organizations from the statutory prohibition against discrimination in employment on the basis of religion, is invalid under the Establishment Clause of the First Amendment.

Jurisdictional statements in <u>Bowen v. Gilliard</u>, 633 F. Supp. 1529 (W.D.N.C. 1986), and <u>Bowen v. Lesko</u>, No. 85-C-1600 (E.D. Wis. 1986). The issue is whether Section 402(a)(38) of the Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. §602(a)(38), which requires that all parents, brothers and sisters who live together be included within a single filing unit for AFDC purposes, violates the Takings Clause, the Due Process Clause, or the Equal Protection component of the Fifth Amendment.

#### CIVIL DIVISION

# D.C. CIRCUIT AFFIRMS SANCTION DISMISSAL OF SUIT AGAINST THE GOVERNMENT FILED BY THE FOUNDING CHURCH OF SCIENTOLOGY.

In 1978, the Founding Church of Scientology alleged that the government was violating its constitutional rights and its related scientology churches and missions by illegal investigative activities and harassment of those organizations. Following the criminal convictions of nine Church officials for theft of government property and other illegal activities against the government, the government raised a defense of unclean hands. The government then sought discovery with respect to that defense, including the deposition of L. Ron Hubbard, the founder and leader of Scientology. The government contended that Hubbard was a managing agent of the Church, that he was the official responsible for the criminal activities which led to the convictions of the high-ranking officials, and that he was in the best position to provide testimony on those matters. The district court found the government's evidence established a prima facie showing that Hubbard remained in control at least through the early 1980's, and ordered Hubbard to appear for a limited purpose deposition to explore his relationship to the Church. The Church failed to produce Hubbard. The court, finding the failure to appear a wilful refusal to comply, dismissed the action pursuant to Rule 37, Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

The D.C. Circuit affirmed the district court as to the underlying status of Hubbard as managing agent, and found no abuse of discretion in the dismissal as a sanction.

Founding Church Of Scientology v. FBI, F.2d, No. 85-5885 (D.C. Cir. Sept. 26, 1986). D. J. # 145-12-3526. Attorneys: Barbara Herwig (FTS 633-5425) and Freddi Lipstein (FTS 633-4815), Civil Division. D.C. CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT 1985 AMENDMENTS TO THE EQUAL ACCESS TO JUSTICE ACT APPLY RETROACTIVELY TO CASES PENDING ON FEES ALONE ON THE DATE OF ENACTMENT OF THE AMENDMENTS.

The Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. §2412(d), provides that a prevailing party is entitled to attorney's fees from the government unless the "position of the United States was substantially justified." In one of the leading cases under the original EAJA, the D.C. Circuit had accepted our argument that the phrase "position of the United States" referred only to the position taken in the litigation, and not to any pre-litigation actions. The EAJA 1985 amendments supplemented the phrase "position of the United States" to make it clear that prelitigation actions must be considered in making the substantial justification determination. The D.C. Circuit held that the amended definition of "substantial justification" applies to a case that was pending on fees alone on August 5, 1985, the date the amendments, including the amendment to the "substantial justification" provision, should only apply to cases pending on the merits on August 5, 1985. The court remanded this particular case for a determination by the district court under the amended law.

Center For Science In The Public Interest v. Regan, F.2d, No. 83-1988 (D.C. Cir. Sept. 26, 1986). D. J. # 145-3-2423. Attorneys: William Kanter (FTS 633-1597) and Marleigh D. Dover (FTS 633-4820), Civil Division.

# FOURTH CIRCUIT UPHOLDS ACCESS BY CIVIL DIVISION TO GRAND JURY MATERIALS IN CIVIL FRAUD PROSECUTION OF LITTON SYSTEMS, INCORPORATED.

After building submarines for the Navy, Litton made claims for reimbursement of millions of dollars, which the government believed fraudulent. Litton was then the subject of a lengthy grand jury investigation, and was indicted, but acquitted of criminal charges of wrongdoing. However, the government decided to pursue Litton in the Claims Court for civil common law and False Claims Act remedies. As part of that process, the government filed a motion in district court seeking access to the grand jury materials involving Litton, which had been turned over to Litton. The district court granted the motion and Litton appealed, alleging a variety of counts of government misconduct and misuse of the grand jury for civil purposes. The Fourth Circuit affirmed, rejecting all of Litton's claims. The court held that the proper standard of review is whether the district court abused its discretion in granting access. No such abuse was present here because the grand jury was over, the matter had been thoroughly aired during the lengthy criminal proceedings.

In re Grand Jury Proceedings, Litton Systems Inc., F.2d , No. 85-5289 (4th Cir. Sept. 12, 1986). D. J. # 145-0-1878. Attorneys: Leonard Schaitman (FTS 633-3441) and Douglas N. Letter (FTS 633-3602), Civil Division.

FIFTH CIRCUIT RULES THAT VETERANS ADMINISTRATION APPRAISAL PRACTICES DID NOT DISCRIMINATE AGAINST PLAINTIFF HOME BUYERS, SELLERS, AND CIVIC ASSOCIATION IN BLACK HOUSTON NEIGHBORHOOD.

Plaintiff home buyers, sellers, and civic association in the predominantly black MacGregor neighborhood of Houston brought suit under several statutes

PAGE 301

charging that the VA had discriminated in its appraisal practices based on the composition of the neighborhood. In essence, the plaintiffs claimed that VA fee appraisers artificially lowered the values they assigned to homes in MacGregor based on race. Plaintiffs presented statistics allegedly showing that the VA underappraised 86% of the time in the MacGregor neighborhood but only 29% of the time in a supposedly comparable white neighborhood.

Without specifically addressing the statistical evidence, the district court dismissed the suit on numerous grounds, including failure to establish discriminatory intent or effect. In its primary argument, the government pointed out that plaintiffs statistical showing was inadequate in many respects, including, inter alia, that the samples were too small and lacked proper control information. The data was insufficient to demonstrate discriminatory effect; and the government's statistics demonstrated adherence to legitimate, race-neutral, appraisal practices. Notwithstanding the plaintiffs' statistical evidence and expert testimony, the Fifth Circuit found no discriminatory intent or effect, supporting the district court's decision.

Hanson v. Veterans Administration, F.2d, No. 85-2618 (5th Cir. Sept. 29, 1986). D. J. # 151-74-1154. Attorneys: Robert S. Greenspan (FTS 633-5428) and Marilyn S.G. Urwitz (FTS 633-4549), Civil Division.

EN BANC SIXTH CIRCUIT RULES THAT COURTS MUST REVIEW APPEALS COUNCIL'S DECISION, NOT ALJ'S TO DETERMINE WHETHER FINAL DECISION OF THE SECRETARY IS SUPPORTED BY SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE IN SOCIAL SECURITY DISABILITY CASES

Two panels of the Sixth Circuit had ruled that in Social Security disability cases, where the ALJ had rendered a decision favorable to the claimant which was then reversed by the Appeals Council, the courts must review the ALJ's decision, not the Appeals Council's, to determine whether substantial evidence supported the Secretary's final decision. This ruling was based on the Court's interpretation of the Secretary's regulations; the panels had rejected the Secretary's interpretation.

On rehearing <u>en</u> <u>banc</u>, the court fully sustained the Secretary's interpretation of his regulations. Thus, the court ruled that, under his regulations, the Secretary--through the Appeals Council--has full authority to review and to reverse any ALJ decision. The court further stated that if there is judicial review, the courts must review the Appeals Council's decision, not the ALJ's, to determine whether substantial evidence supports the Secretary's final decision.

Mullen and Shepherd v. Bowen, F.2d, Nos. 84-1455 and 84-5352 (6th Cir. Sept. 2, 1986). D. J. # 137-38-621 and 137-30-1767. Attorneys: William Kanter (FTS 633-1597) and Howard Scher (FTS 633-4820), Civil Division. LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION

#### INDIAN TRIBE LACKS JURISDICTION TO ENJOIN FEDERAL OFFICIALS FROM RELOCATING IRRIGATION CANAL ON LANDS BELONGING TO TWO INDIANS.

The Yakima tribal court entered a permanent restraining order preventing federal officials from relocating an irrigation canal on lands belonging to two Yakima Indians, the Sohappys. The district court granted the government's motion for summary judgment, voiding the restraining order on the ground that the tribal court lacked jurisdiction to enjoin federal officials from performing their official duties.

The Ninth Circuit affirmed, holding: (1) The appeal was not moot, even though settlement had been reached wherein the Interior Department paid the Sohappys for a right-of-way, because in order to decide the validity of the tribal court's order, the merits had to be considered. (2) The district court had jurisdiction to determine limits of tribe's powers over federal officials. (3) The federal official involved was acting within the scope of his delegated authority, and the tribal court action was an unconsented suit against the United States barred by sovereign immunity. (4) The United States was not required to exhaust tribal court remedies inasmuch as the tribal court lacked jurisdiction; the United States could override tribal immunity; and the tribal judge's assertion of judicial immunity failed because his status as a tribal judicial officer does not confer immunity against injunctive relief.

United States v. Yakima Tribal Court, F.2d, No. 85-3927 (9th Cir. July 21, 1986). D. J. # 90-2-4-970. Attorneys: Kathleen P. Dewey (FTS 633-4519) and Martin W. Matzen (FTS 633-4426), Land and Natural Resources Division.

#### INTERIOR'S CALCULATION OF ROYALTIES DUE FROM FEDERAL GAS LEAVE SUSTAINED.

Marathon produces gas from federal lands in Alaska, cools it to liquid form (LNG), and ships the LNG to Japan where it is sold to Japanese public utility customers. Marathon's leases, issued under the Mineral Leasing Act, 30 U.S.C. §181 et seq., require it to pay a royalty of 12 1/2% in amount or value of the production removed or sold from the lease. The applicable Department of the Interior regulation, 30 C.F.R. §206.103, which is incorporated into the leases by reference, provides that the value of production for the purposes of computing royalties will be determined by Interior and that due consideration will be given to the highest prices being paid for production in the same field and to other relevant matters. The regulation, however, further states that "[u]nder no circumstances shall the value of production . . . be deemed to be less than the gross proceeds accruing to the lessee from the sale thereof . . . ."

Marathon challenged the "net-back" orders. The district court entered summary judgment in favor of the government and issued an injunction directing Marathon to calculate and pay royalties by the "netback" method. <u>Marathon Oil Co. v. United States</u>, 604 F. Supp. 1375 (D. Alaska 1985). Marathon appealed the case in the district court, then proceeded to an accounting.

On appeal, the court of appeals first determined that, under the circumstances of this case, its appellate jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. \$1292(a)(1) extends to the order granting summary judgment as well as the injunction per se. Reaching the merits, the Ninth Circuit upheld Interior's orders directing Marathon to calculate and pay royalties pursuant to a "net-back" formula. The court further found that Marathon's objections to certain particulars of the formula were premature pending resolution of the accounting proceedings in the district court. Finally, the court held that there were no disputed issues of material fact barring entry of final judgment.

Marathon Oil Company v. United States, F.2d, No. 85-3800 (9th Cir. July 24, 1986). D. J. # 90-1-18-3738. Attorneys: Robert L. Klarquist (FTS 633-2731), Michael W. Reed (FTS 633-5288), and Jacques B. Gelin (FTS 633-2762), Land and Natural Resources Division.

EPA HAS AUTHORITY TO ISSUE AND ENFORCE ORDER UNDER SECTION 3013 OF THE RESOURCE CONSERVATION AND RECOVERY ACT EVEN WHERE AN EPA-APPROVED STATE PROGRAM IS IN EFFECT.

Subtitle C of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act ("RCRA"), Sections 3001 et seq., 42 U.S.C. §6921 et seq., authorizes and directs EPA to establish a comprehensive federal program governing the generation, transportation, storage, and disposal of hazardous wastes. Congress further provided in Section 3006 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §6926, a mechanism by which a state may, upon EPA approval, administer its own hazardous waste program "in lieu of the [f]ederal program" established pursuant to RCRA and administered by EPA.

Wyckoff Corporation owns and operates two woodpreserving facilities in Washington State, where an EPA-approved state RCRA program is in effect. EPA determined that substantial quantities of hazardous wastes were escaping from these sites into Puget Sound. Pursuant to Section 3013 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §6934, EPA directed Wyckoff to conduct monitoring, testing and reporting regarding the hazardous waste problems at the two sites.

The district court denied Wyckoff's motion for a preliminary injunction barring EPA from seeking to implement and enforce the Section 3013 orders. Wyckoff maintained that EPA's Section 3013 authority was part of the "[f]ederal program" which was replaced by the state program under Section 3006.

On appeal, the Ninth Circuit affirmed. The court of appeals, noting that the term "[f]ederal program" was not defined in the definitional provision of the statute, found that EPA's Section 3013 authority to compel monitoring, analysis, and testing, was not intended by Congress to be part of the "[f]ederal program" which is replaced where an EPA-approved state RCRA program is in effect. The court further found that EPA's interpretation of RCRA was a reasonable one and, thus, must be upheld by the courts.

Wyckoff Company v. Environmental Protection Agency, F.2d, No. 85-3518 (9th Cir. Aug. 14, 1986). D. J. # 90-7-1-272. Attorneys: Robert L. Klarquist (FTS 633-2731) and David C. Shilton (FTS 633-5580), Land and Natural Resources Division. UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS' OFFICES

GEORGIA, MIDDLE

#### DISTRICT COURT HOLDS THAT THE UNITED STATES IS ENTITLED TO THE IMMUNITY AFFORDED EMPLOYERS UNDER THE GEORGIA WORKERS' COMPENSATION ACT FROM PARTIES SEEKING CONTRIBUTION OR INDEMNITY FOR PAYMENTS MADE TO AN EMPLOYEE OF THE UNITED STATES.

A civilian aircraft maintenance worker, employed by the United States Air Force at Robins Air Force Base, Georgia, died from injuries sustained in a fall from a maintenance workstand positioned at the tail section of a C-141 aircraft. His survivors filed suit against the manufacturers of the workstand and the corporation hired by the Air Force to maintain the workstand. The insurance companies for the respective defendants in that action eventually settled the claims by paying the survivors. The insurance companies, subrogated to the rights of the manufacturer and maintenance contractor, brought an FTCA action against the United States for indemnity/contribution alleging that the United States had been negligent in inspecting and maintaining the workstand and that such negligence proximately caused the worker's death.

The worker's survivors were also paid benefits under the Federal Employees' Compensation Act (FECA). Following settlement of the claims against the manufacturer and maintenance contractor, the government suspended payments under FECA and made a demand for a refund of a portion of the benefits previously awarded, pursuant to 5 U.S.C. §§ 8131-32.

The United States filed a motion to dismiss, later converted by the court to a motion for summary judgment, contending that because a private party in Georgia would not be liable in a third-party action for contribution and/or indemnity where it has paid worker's compensation benefits, the United States could not be liable in tort to the plaintiffs. Citing Georgia case law, the court held that rights under the Georgia Workers' Compensation Act are not exclusive but must be supplemented by consistent federal and state legislation not found specifically under that Act's provisions. The court, therefore, concluded that it is consistent with the Georgia Workers' Compensation Act that the United States is entitled to the immunity afforded employers under that Act, while at the same time allowing the United States to seek subrogation under 5 U.S.C. §§ 8131-32.

Insurance Company of North America v. United States, F. Supp., No. 85-366-3-MAC (WDO) (M.D. Ga. Sept. 9, 1986). D. J. # 157-19M-474. Attorney: Frank L. Butler, III, Assistant United States Attorney, Middle District of Georgia (FTS 238-0454).

#### FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

<u>Rule 6(e)(2)</u>. The Grand Jury. Recording and Disclosure of Proceedings. General Rule of Secrecy.

A subpoena duces tecum, issued to a financial institution for records of two of its customers who were targets of a federal grand jury investigation, included a request that the financial institution not disclose the existence of the subpoena to the customers. After being informed that the financial institution would notify the customers, the government sought a secrecy order from the district court. The court held that it lacked authority to issue the secrecy order because Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure 6(e)(2) prohibits the imposition of an order of secrecy on grand jury witnesses.

In a case of first impression in a federal circuit court, the court of appeals held that Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure 6(e)(2) does not preclude a district court from issuing an order of nondisclosure to a grand jury witness when the government shows a compelling need for secrecy. The congressional intent in approving Rule 6(e)(2), which bans orders of nondisclosure to grand jury witnesses, was to alleviate hardship on grand jury witnesses by permitting disclosure to counsel or to associates. To construe the provisions of Rule 6(e)(2) to give grand jury witnesses unrestricted freedom to communicate the existence of a subpoena would completely undercut the entire purpose to grand jury secrecy. Accordingly, while affirming the district court, the court of appeals remanded for the district court to consider any government motion for reconsideration based on additional evidence.

(Affirmed and remanded.)

Concurrence. Judge McMillian concurring in result only; order of the district court should be affirmed.

In Re Grand Jury Subpoena Duces Tecum, dated January 15, 1986, 797 F.2d 676 (8th Cir. July 29, 1986).

Rule 11. Pleas.

Indictments were returned over a two-year period in the Eastern District of Virginia, the District of South Carolina, and the Eastern District of North Carolina charging a number of defendants with separate drug smuggling and distribution offenses. Defendant was indicted in the Eastern District of Virginia and agreed to plead guilty to a single count in return for a motion to dismiss the remaining eight counts against him and abstention from further prosecution for violations related to those charged in the indictment. After defendant was released from prison he was arrested on two charges of a multi-count indictment in the District of South Carolina that appears to involve the same smuggling Defendant moved in the Eastern District of Virginia for an order to operation. enforce the plea agreement enjoining his prosecution and the court denied this Defendant states that the agreement was that the government should order. not--anywhere or by any prosecutorial force--prosecute him further for violations "arising from" the general investigation that led to the indictment under which he entered his guilty plea under Rule 11. The government states that the agreement

was only that he should not be further prosecuted for such violations by (or in) "the Eastern District of Virginia."

The Fourth Circuit held that, according to Rule 11, an ambiguous plea agreement made with the defendant binds federal prosecutors in not only the jurisdiction where it was struck but also in others where he faced charges. Both the court and the defendant understood the provision to preclude further prosecution anywhere, and the prosecutor did nothing to dispel that understanding. Although contractual ambiguities are usually equally chargeable to the parties in the private law context, the same is not true in criminal law, where a plea bargain represents a waiver by the defendant of a constitutional right. Moreover, a prior circuit precedent, <u>United States v. Carter</u>, 454 F.2d 426 (4th Cir. 1972), holds that a plea agreement binds the government as a whole unless the agreement specifically limits its reach. The court vacated the order and remanded for further proceedings.

(Vacated and remanded.)

United States v. Harvey, 791 F.2d 294 (4th Cir. May 22, 1986).

CUMULATIVE LIST OF CHANGING FEDERAL CIVIL POSTJUDGMENT INTEREST RATES

(As provided for in the amendment to the Federal Postjudgment Interest Statute, 28 U.S.C. §1961, effective October 1, 1982.)

Effective Date	Annual Rate
12-20-85	7.57%
01-17-86	7.85%
02-14-86	7.71%
03-14-86	7.06%
04-11-86	6.31%
05-14-86	6.56%
06-06-86	7.03%
.07-09-86	6.35%
08-01-86	6.18%
08-29-86	5.63%
09-26-86	5.79%

NOTE: When computing interest at the daily rate, round (5/4) the product (<u>i.e.</u>, the amount of interest computed) to the nearest whole cent.

For cumulative list of those federal civil postjudgment interest rates effective October 1, 1982, through December 19, 1985, see United States Attorneys' Bulletin, Vol. 34, No. 1, Page 25, January 17, 1986.

# UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS' LIST

# DISTRICT

# U.S. ATTORNEY

	Fuenda II - Demoldeen
Alabama, N	Frank W. Donaldson
Alabama, M	John C. Bell
Alabama, S	J. B. Sessions, III
Alaska	Michael R. Spaan
Arizona	Stephen M. McNamee
Arkansas, E	George W. Proctor
Arkansas, W	J. Michael Fitzhugh
California, N	Joseph P. Russoniello
California, E	Peter A. Nowinski
<u>California, C</u>	Robert C. Bonner
California, S	Peter K. Nunez
Colorado	Robert N. Miller
Connecticut	Stanley A. Twardy, Jr.
Delaware	William C. Carpenter, Jr.
District of Columbia	Joseph E. diGenova
Florida, N	W. Thomas Dillard
Florida, M	Robert W. Merkle
Florida, S	Leon B. Kellner
Georgia, N	Robert L. Barr, Jr.
Georgia, M	Joe D. Whitley
Georgia, S	Hinton R. Pierce
Guam	K. William O'Connor
Hawaii	Daniel A. Bent
Idaho	Maurice O. Ellsworth
Illinois, N	Anton R. Valukas
Illinois, S	Frederick J. Hess
Illinois, C	Gerald D. Fines
Indiana, N	James G. Richmond
Indiana, S	John D. Tinder
Iowa, N	Charles W. Larson
Iowa, S	Christopher D. Hagen
Kansas	Benjamin L. Burgess, Jr.
Kentucky, E	Louis G. DeFalaise
Kentucky, W	Joseph M. Whittle
Louisiana, E	John Volz
Louisiana, M	P. Raymond Lamonica
Louisiana, W	Joseph S. Cage, Jr.
Maine	Richard S. Cohen
Maryland	Breckinridge L. Willcox
Massachusetts	Robert S. Mueller III
Michigan, E	Roy C. Hayes
Michigan, W	John A. Smietanka
Minnesota	Jerome G. Arnold
Mississippi, N	Robert Q. Whitwell
Mississippi, S	George L. Phillips Thomas E. Dittmeier
Missouri, E	
Missouri, W	Robert G. Ulrich



 $\sim 1$ 

PAGE 309

## UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS

### DISTRICT

### U.S. ATTORNEY

Montana	Byron H. Dunbar
Nebraska	Ronald D. Lahners
Nevada	William A. Maddox
New Hampshire	Richard V. Wiebusch
•	Thomas W. Greelish
New Jersey	
New Mexico	William L. Lutz
New York, N	Frederick J. Scullin, Jr.
New York, S	Rudolph W. Giuliani
New York, E	Andrew J. Maloney
New York, W	Roger P. Williams
North Carolina, E	Samuel T. Currin
North Carolina, M	Kenneth W. McAllister
North Carolina, W	Charles R. Brewer
North Dakota	Rodney S. Webb
Ohio, N	Patrick M. McLaughlin
Ohio, S	D. Michael Crites
Oklahoma, N	Layn R. Phillips
Oklahoma, E	Roger Hilfiger
Oklahoma, W	William S. Price
Oregon	Charles H. Turner
Pennsylvania, E	Edward S. G. Dennis, Jr.
Pennsylvania, M	James J. West
Pennsylvania, W	J. Alan Johnson
Puerto Rico	Daniel F. Lopez-Romo
Rhode Island	Lincoln C. Almond
South Carolina	Vinton DeVane Lide
South Dakota	Philip N. Hogen
Tennessee, E	John W. Gill, Jr.
Tennessee, M	Joe B. Brown
Tennessee, W	
	W. Hickman Ewing, Jr. Marvin Collins
Texas, N Texas	
Texas, S	Henry K. Oncken
Texas, E	Robert J. Wortham
Texas, W	Helen M. Eversberg
<u> </u>	Brent D. Ward
Vermont	George J. Terwilliger
Virgin Islands	James W. Diehm
Virginia, E	Henry E. Hudson
Virginia, W	John P. Alderman
Washington, E	John E. Lamp
Washington, W	Gene S. Anderson
West Virginia, N	William A. Kolibash
West Virginia, S	David A. Faber
Wisconsin. E	Joseph P. Stadtmueller
Wisconsin, W	John R. Byrnes
Wyoming	Richard A. Stacy
North Mariana Islands	K. William O'Connor
	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••